1980

Edward O'Hara v. Jay A. Hall, Jr : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Plaintiff and Respondents alleged a written contract wherein the Appellant Hall agreed to remodel a house for Respondents. It is alleged that Appellant Hall breached the agreement.

Defendant and Appellant answered denying that a contract to remodel the house existed. He affirmatively alleged that the document relied on by Respondents was too indefinite to be enforced and was not intended to be the agreement between the parties. Appellant Hall alleged that he was employed by the hour to assist Respondent O'Hara in the remodeling of the house, and counterclaimed to foreclose a mechanic's lien claim for wages due.

DISPOSITION IN TRIAL COURT

A Jury trial was held wherein the Honorable Judge D. Christian Ronnow, District Court Judge Pro Tem ruled that the written document was a binding contract requiring Defendant-Appellant to remodel the house for a sum certain and so instructed the jury. The Honorable Judge failed to recognize that the alleged contract was completely void of any plans or specifications for the remodeling of the house, and required the jury to determine the amount of

of damages to be assessed against Appellant Hall for the alleged breach of the indefinite contract. The jury returned a verdict against Defendant and Appellant for the net sum of \$10,237.56.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendant and Appellant contends that the written document, Exhibit P-1, was too indefinite to be enforced, and seeks reversal of the lower Court's ruling, for an Order dismissing Plaintiff and Respondent's Cause of Action, or for a new trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Defendant and Appellant Hall is a carpenter (Tr. page 115) with a C-1 remodeling license issued by the State of Utah. (Tr. page 279 and page 461). During 1976 Appellant Hall did some carpentry work for the Respondents on a barn. He was paid for his work by the hour. (Tr. page 116) As a result of the association, the Halls and the O'Haras became friends. (Tr. page 126) Thereafter on or about August 1977, the Respondents asked Appellant Hall to help remodel their house. (Tr. page 116) The parties met three times and discussed the project. (Tr. page 49-50) For example, during the meetings Respondent O'Hara told Appellant Hall he wanted a 12 x 30 ft addition put on, that he wanted to lower the ceilings in the old rooms, and wanted to remodel the upstairs. He told Appellant Hall he wanted it built with the "best stuff they had on the market." (Tr. page 50-53) Respondent O'Hara wanted the fruit room removed, a kitchen built plus a utility room. He wanted the old roof resingled with the "widest they could get." (Tr. page 53 & 54) The parties did some measuring to try and determine where the new addition would be and the location of the kitchen. (Tr. page 56)

During the conversation it was agreed that Respondent O'Haras would select and pay for the materials, and Appellant Hall would install them. (Tr. page 5 line 12-23, and page 58 line 9-11)

During the three meetings the Respondent O'Haras asked Appellant Hall if he would prepare an estimate of what it would cost to do the

remodeling work they were discussing. According to Respondent Helen O'Hara, the estimate was needed so they would know about how much money to borrow from the bank. (Tr. page 97 line 18-24)

Appellant Hall filled out a form entitled "Proposal and Contract" Exhibit P-1, signed it and gave it to Respondents. His common practice in business was to do his work on an hourly basis and had never before used the "Proposal and Contract" form. (Tr. page 128 line 25 and page 130 line 8) Appellant Hall gave the estimate to the Respondents so they would have something to take to the bank. (Tr. page 118 line 25 and 119) Appellant Hall did not intend the document to be a bid or contract for the remodeling of the house. (Tr. page 120 line 11-24, page 129 & 130, page 131 line 1-13)

The essentials of the alleged contract, Exhibit P-1 are:

"I, Jay Hall, propose to furnish all materials and perform all labor necessary to complete the following:

An addition to the old house (12'x 30') comprising family room, kitchen, and fruit room. Reshingle old roof. Install thermal pane windows in all house. Remodel bathroom in old house. Lower ceiling in living room, and install radiant heat. Remodel upstairs. Remove old porch. Remodel stairs. Install several doors in old house. (not including siding and cabinets).

All of the above work to be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner according to standard practice for the sum of.....\$24,200."

After the document P-1 was prepared, the parties started the remodeling project without any plans or specifications. (Tr. page 91 line 16-21) They developed ideas and planned the remodeling as they progressed with the work. (Tr. page 106 line 22-25, and page 107)

The Respondents O'Hara would describe to Appellant Hall what they

wanted and he would follow their directions. (Tr page 74 and page 76) Respondents paid Hall for the labor he and his helper put in each week. (Tr. 72 line 5-12, page 69 line 4-8) Respondents paid out \$35,034.56 on the remodeling project, which did not include cabinets and siding, which they considered an "extra". (Tr. page 562 line 10) Of the total amount paid out, \$5,426.15 was paid to Appellant Hall for labor, and \$780 for materials not including cabinets and siding. (Tr. page 454 and 455, and page 457 line 15-23) The balance of the total sum paid out by Respondents went to various material supplies. (Tr. page 553-562) Appellant had no control over the materials purchased for the project. (Tr. page 129 line 22, and page 57 and 58) Although Hall and his helpers did order materials as needed for the work, he was doing so on behalf of the Respondent O'Haras. (Tr. page 368)

The remodeling project was substantially completed when Respondent O'Hara ordered Appellant Hall to stop work. (Tr. page 370 line 13-19; page 381 line 21-25, and page 414 line 6-21)

POINT I

The Trial Judge erred in ruling that an incomplete, indefinite writing, Exhibit P-1, was a binding remodeling contract requiring the Appellant Hall to remodel Respondent O'Hara's house for \$24,200.

ARGUMENT

Respondents filed action alleging breach of a building and remodeling contract allegedly entered into between the parties on August 15, 1977. (Exhibit P-1, Record page *A-100*) Appellant Hall answered the complaint denying that a contract existed between the parties, and alleged that he worked for the Respondents on an hourly basis and remodeled their house according to their instruction as the project progressed. Appellant counterclaimed to foreclose a mechanic's lien he had filed against the house, for wages unpaid. (Record page *14*)

Appellant Hall also filed a Motion seeking the dismissal of the complaint for the reason that the written document upon which it was based was too indefinite to be enforced. (Record page)

The point was also argued to the Court prior to submitting evidence to the jury. (Tr. page 80, 81)

The Trial Judge found the proposal and contract "bare boned" (Tr. page 81, line 8) and that "it was indefinite, that there were decisions to be made along the way. The decisions were, in fact, made along the way." (Tr. page 81, line 14-17)

The Trial Judge further stated that the written document was not only ambiguous, but that there was an appalling lack of detail, however, that parol evidence rule could be used to amplify or clarify those provisions in the contract. (Tr. page 133 line 10-25, and page 134)

The Court then ruled the written document Exhibit P-1 was a contract that the Appellant Hall could only proceed on the theory that he performed extras under the contract for which he was not paid. (Tr. page 135, line 8-19)

The Court instructed the Jury in Jury Instruction No.13:

"You are instructed that it has been established in this case that the defendant, Jay Hall, on or about the 15th day of August, 1977, entered into a written contract with Edward O'Hara to furnish all materials and perform all labor necessary to complete the following:

- An addition to the old house (30 feet by 12 feet) comprising of a family room, kitchen and fruit room.
- Reshingle old roof.
- Install thermal pane windows in all house.
- Remodel bathroom in old house.
- Lower ceiling in living room and install radiant heat.
- Remodel upstairs.
- Remove old porch.
- Remodel stairs.
- Install several doors in old house (not including siding and cabinets.)

You are further instructed that in the said agreement it is established that all of the above work was to be completed in substantial and workmanlike manner, according to standard practices. That the same was to be done for the payment of \$24,400.00."

(Tr. page 586 and 587)

Also Jury Instruction No. 18:

"You are instructed that it has been established that the defendant was acting as an independent contractor and started work in August, 1977 following the execution of the said contract."

(Tr. page 580 line 5-8)

Prior to signing the contract document, the parties had three meetings and discussions concerning the planned remodeling project. The discussions were general in nature about what the Respondent O'Haras would like to have done. On several items they asked Appellant Hall's advice. (Tr. page 50-59) Thereafter the alleged contract Exhibit P-1 was signed by the parties. (Tr. page 60-61)

On direct examination Respondent Ed O'Hara was asked what the \$24,200 figure would include. His answer was everything that was listed in the contract, except siding, cabinets, a porch railing, and the painting. (Tr. page 65 line 20-25, page 66 line 1-14) Thereafter an immediate exchange arose between the Trial Judge, Respondent O'Hara and Respondent's counsel about what was or was not included in the contract. (Tr. page 66, 67, & 68)

On cross-examination, Respondent O'Hara, in response to questions about what was included in the contract, stated that the work was planned as the project progressed, part of his testimony is set out below:

"the building went up and as it went up, then he'd ask me "Where do you want this? Where do you want that?"

We had to have a building up before we could decide where we wanted it." (Tr. page 74 line 1-4)

"My wife told him where she wanted the kitchen." (Tr. page 74 line 18)

"Q. Now, when did your wife and you tell him where you wanted the kitchen?

"A. I guess after he had the siding up." (Tr. page 74 line 21-23)

"Q. When was it decided how many thermo-pane windows would be installed in the house?"

"A. As the sides went up with the building, new addition, he wanted to know, "where did you want the windows?" (Tr. page 76 line 5-9)

Other than the instructions given by Respondents to Appellant Hall, after the contract was signed, as the project progressed, there were no other plans and specifications outlining the work which Appellant Hall was supposed to do under the contract. After several pages of questions and answers on the subject (Tr. page 89, 90, 91) the Trial Judge concluded that there were no formal plans and specifications. (Tr. page 91 line 16-21, and page 107 line 13-19)

Yet in spite of the total lack of detail in the document, and lack of any plan or specification, and in spite of the Respondent's own testimony that plans and details of layout and construction were made by the Respondents and dictated to the Appellant Hall as the remodeling work progressed, the Trial Judge ruled that Exhibit P-1 was a remodeling contract for which the Appellant Hall was responsible. (Tr. page 135 line 8)

In the case of Hansen v. Snell 354 P2d. 1070, 11 UT 2d, 64, the Supreme Court of Utah considered a case where a defendant signed a real estate broker's agreement allegedly agreeing to sell her property, which stated:

"Price \$43,000 cash. Terms to suit the seller.

The broker found a buyer who was willing to pay \$43,000 cash or "on terms to suit the seller." The defendant seller refused to sell, and the Supreme Court held the "would be" contract unenforceable against the defendant. The Supreme Court stated:

"The terms and the amounts in which the payments should be made and also the rate of interest on the deferred balance are part of the 'terms' of a real estate sales

contract. The importance of the interest rate as one of the 'terms' of such a contract is made emphatic by the controversy which has here developed.

"In order for a contract to be binding, it must spell out the obligations of the parties with sufficient definiteness that it can be performed. (emphasis added)

The alleged construction contract between O'Hara and Hall is completely silent on essential plans and specifications which are always included in similar construction contract. The purported contract leaves unanswered such questions as What is the addition to be constructed of, brick, block, lumber, mud, rocks or what? Is plaster to be used or drywall? How many windows or doors and where? Tar paper, asphalt or shake shingles? What size thermal pane windows, how many and where? New fixtures in the bathroom or used? Repaint or wall paper in the bathroom? New floor? What does "remodel upstairs and stairs mean? How many doors is "several doors".

These are all questions which point out a complete lack of certainty in the alleged contract as to what defendant's obligations were. The lack of plans and specifications in the alleged written agreement is certainly no less important than the terms and amount of payment and interest rates were in the Hansen v. Snell case just recited. The lack of understanding between the parties and this resulting lawsuit was created by the lack of plans and specifications which would have detailed the duties and obligations of Appellant Hall had they been present. This lack of understanding is aptly demonstrated by Respondent Helen O'Hara's final testimony at the trial on cross-

examination. She testified that the contract included building two "dormers." (Tr. page 566 line 17-20) The contract does not even mention dormers. Mrs. O'Hara testified that the contract included shake shingles, (Tr. page 566 line 21-23) where the contract stated only "reshingle roof". She testified that the construction of a new porch was included in the contract, (Tr. page 566 line 24, page 567 line 1-7) where the contract said only "Remove old porch." Mrs. O'Hara testified that the construction of extra closets in the house was part of the contract, where closets are not mentioned in the contract at all. (Tr. page 568 line 14-19) She testified that the removal and closing in of two large windows was part of the contract. (Tr. page 569 line 7-9) The contract does not mention such work. Mrs. O'Hara stated that lowering the ceiling in the bedroom was part of the contract whereas the contract only states "Lower ceilings in living room."

Contracts indefinite as to work or property to be done for the price recited in the agreements, renders it just as unenforceable as if the price itself was missing. A promise to erect a building where the deminsions and plans are not specified, or which refers to plans and specifications as a part of a contract though no plans and specifications are attached, are examples of such contracts that are too indefinite to be enforced. Williston on Contracts 3rd Edition § 42, page 35.

A specific case in point is the Klimek vs. Perisich case found at 371 P.2d 956. The case was decided by the Supreme Court of Oregon and essentially had identical facts as this case now before the Court. The plaintiff in the Klimek case alleged a contract against defendant

requiring the defendant to remodel an old house into a rooming house with so many rooms for \$10,000. The Jury found for the plaintiff, but the Trial Judge entered Judgement notwithstanding the verdict and plaintiff appealed.

The Supreme Court of Oregon affirmed the lower Court's decision, reasoning as follows:

"There is in fact no evidence as to the manner or extent to which the building was to be remodeled other than that it should be partitioned to accomodate a certain number of rooms; whether the remodeling required the replacement of floors and stairways; the rooms to be finished of lathe and plaster or 'dry walls', painted or papered; whether the wiring was to be replaced, or used or new plumbing fixtures installed....the Trial Court correctly held that there was no contract."

The Superior Court of Pennsylvania also considered the validity of an indefinite building contract, in Halowich v. Amminiti 154 A.2d 406, 190 Pa. Super. 314. The Court at page 409 stated:

"the written agreement...omits many indispensable items.the agreement does not show whether the house was to be a single story or a two-story structure. It did not specify the number of bedrooms, or whether or not there was to be a kitchen, a living room, or dining room; the number and kind of windows; the number of closets and electrical outlets; and other essential information."

The Pennsylvania Court found that the contract was not enforceable, even though there were a set of plans and blueprints which the parties used and relied on.

In this case Respondent O'Hara can not point to similar plans and specifications, but only to the contract itself and the acknowledgement that plans were discussed and developed as the project progressed. In fact, the Respondent O'Haras themselves

did not know what they thought was included until after the project was substantially completed. (Tr. page 566-570)

The District Court of Appeals, Second District, Division 3, State of California, considered a similar building agreement in Ellis v. Kloff, 216 P.2d 15 96 Cal. App. 2d 471. Defendants leased property from plaintiff for use in an automobile sales agency. The lease provided

"the lessee agrees to improve said premises by the construction of a building or buildings as soon as building conditions reasonably permit. It is understood that this obligation of the lessee is one of the elements of the consideration to be given by the lessee..." Any building or structure constructed by the lessee shall comply strictly with the building code."

The California District Court of Appeals held the agreement to build unenforceable, primarily on the grounds that it violated the Statute of Frauds. The Court stated at page 20:

"Although the term of a contract need not be stated in the minutest detail, it is requisite to enforceability that it must evidence a meeting of the minds upon the essential features of the agreement, and that the scope of the duty and limits of acceptable performance be at least sufficiently defined to provide a rational basis for the assessment of damages."

POINT II

The Trial Judge erred in not submitting the question of whether or not the parties intended the proposal and contract document, Exhibit P-1, to be the controlling agreement between them concerning the house remodeling project, or whether it was intended for some other purpose.

ARGUMENT

In answer to Plaintiff and Respondent's complaint, Appellant Defendant alleged that he agreed to do remodeling work for the Plaintiff on an hourly basis; that all materials were to be furnished by Plaintiff and Plaintiff would direct the work. Appellant and Defendant Hall affirmatively denied that the "Proposal and Contract" document, Exhibit P-1, was intended to be the controlling agreement between the parties for the remodeling of the house. He further affirmatively alleged that the document was intended as his estimate of the cost of the work contemplated by the Plaintiff, which was not intended to be an offer to contract, so that the Plaintiffs would know how much money they needed to borrow to finance their remodeling project. (Paragraph 3, Answer and Counterclaim Record page 14)

The Answer and affirmative defense was supported by the evidence at the trial. Appellant Hall testified that he had previously done work for the Respondent O'Hara on a ceramics barn project on an hourly wage basis. (Tr. page 116 line 7-18) He construed himself and his wife as good friends with the Respondents.

The Respondents again sought his service to remodel their house and he agreed to do so on an hourly wage basis. (Tr. page 120).

Appellant Hall testified that the Proposal and Contract, Exhibit P-1, was prepared by him at the request of Respondent as a favor to friends so they would have an estimate of how much it would cost to remodel their house. They needed the estimate so they would

know how much to borrow from the bank to finance the project. (Tr. page 118 line 25, page 119)

Appellant Hall's testimony as to the intent of the document was supported by the testimony of Respondent Helen O'Hara. The Respondent Helen O'Hara, on direct examination, stated that they (Respondents) asked Appellant Hall for the document because they wanted to go to the bank and get just the amount they would need. (Tr. page 97 line 18-24)

The above testimony of Appellant Hall and Respondent O'Hara was given to the Court out of the presence of the Jury during the Court's hearing to determine whether or not the Proposal and Contract was an enforceable contract between the parties. (Tr. page 39-40) Thereafter, the Trial Judge ruled that the document was a binding contract between the parties for the remodeling of the house. (Tr. page 135 line 8-9) At the trial before the Jury, the Trial Judge refused to allow Appellant's attorney to ask questions concerning Appellant Hall's hourly employment with the Respondents.

At page 382 line 22 and page 383 of the Transcript, the following testimony and Court rulings are found:

"Q: (By Appellant's counsel directed at Respondent Helen O'Hara)

"All right, so you paid him every week for the labor that he put in during the week?"

A: "Right."

By the Court: "Mr. Anderson, at this point, I'm going to have to tell you that I've already ruled that this is a contract and your questioning this witness, now, getting it over into an employer/employee relationship I hold to be irregular.

I have ruled Exhibit P-1 is a contract, made by a general contractor, to do certain work on remodeling. I cannot let this jury listen to any evidence, at this

point, on your theory that he was working for wages... apparently, they paid this man every week. I don't want to make any more comments particular, to indicate any frame of mind that I have, other than to say that since I have ruled as a matter of law, after a two-hour hearing, that there was a contract entered into by Mr. Hall, as a general contractor, and the O'Haras as his clients. I will not allow this Jury to listen to evidence about wages. Wages is a part and parcel of an employer/employee relationship. I have repudiated that. I will so advise this Jury.""

The Court further refused Appellant's requested Jury Instruction wherein the Appellants ask that the Jury be instructed that if it found that the Proposal and Contract, Exhibit P-1, was not intended by the parties to be a binding agreement, either because it was made up for some other purpose, or that it did not reflect what the parties intended to do, then it must find for the Defendant. (Record page 48). The Court's exclusion of the issue of whether or not the parties intended the document to be the controlling agreement was error, because the issue is a question of fact which the Jury should have determined. The position is particularly fortified by the evidence presented to the Court cited above where even the Respondent's testimony supported the testimony of Appellant Hall.

The law is set out in Trial 75 AmJur 2d page 443 § 401:

"The determination of the intent of the parties to make a contract, as gathered from what they did and said, is normally a question of fact for the Jury. Thus the question of....whether a writing expresses the intention of the parties are questions for the Jury."

The Court's denial of the defense raised by the pleadings and

supported in the evidence was a denial of the Appellant's right to a trial by a Jury, where Appellant and Defendant filed his written demand for Jury trial and paid the required fee. Constitution of Utah Article I, § 10; Utah Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 38 and 39.

As a result of the position taken by the Court on the contract, the Honorable Judge continually instructed the Jury that they must determine the damages to be assessed against Appellant Hall, and that they could only decide in favor of Appellant Hall on extras he might have performed for Respondents. (Tr. page 562-565) The result was to force the Appellant Hall and his attorney to attempt to try the case before the Jury on a theory inconsistent with the Appellant's answer and his theory of the case, which was highly prejudicial to Appellant and confusing to Appellant and the Jury as well.

CONCLUSION

Appellant Hall and Respondents O'Hara discussed remodeling Respondent's house during August 1977. Respondents needed an estimate of what it would cost to do the work they discussed and asked Appellant for an estimate so they could take it to the bank. Appellant gave his estimate on a form entitled "Proposal and Contract," but he did not intend it to be a bid or contract to remodel the house for a lump sum. The contract was lacking in details of construction and no plans or specifications were made. The parties started the project and worked on it for several months, developing ideas and plans as the work progressed. Respondents told Appellant what they wanted and he built it. They paid

Appellant his wages each week and paid material men for material used in the project. The Respondent ordered Appellant off the job.