1980

# Edward O'Hara v. Jay A. Hall, Jr : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Respondant by way of a short reply to appellant's brief reports that the principal issue in the law suit as raised by the complaint was not treated or discussed in Appellant's brief. That is, that the document in writing marked "proposal and contract" prepared by defendant-appellant and signed by him provided, "all of the above work to be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner according to standard and practice for the sum of \$24,200.00. (emphasis added) (ex.1)

The matter was presented to the Court and jury not only on the issue that the work and repair, (not including siding and cabinets) would be completed for \$24,200.00, but would be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner according to standards and practice.

### DISPOSITION IN TRIAL COURT

The Jury trial resulted with the jurors signing a special verdict (verdict A) that the defendant's failure to construct the remodeling in a workmanlike manner has resulted in the necessity of plaintiff to re - do all or part of the work done by defendant and that the dollar value of this cost to plaintiffs is \$11,448.00.

Additionally we find an overpayment was made to defendant in the sum of \$4670.56.

If no award is given write "none" following the dollar sign.

The jurors further found in a special "verdict B" that defendant performed work or furnished materials to the remodeling of plaintiff's home, not required by the terms of the contract or that were extra to his obligation under the contract and that the dollar value of such work and material is \$5881.00.

If no award is given write "none" following the dollar sign.

The net award to the plaintiff after consideration of these issues is \$10,237.56.

#### RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant, without presenting the issue of defendant's failure to construct the remodeling in a workmanlike manner asked for a dismissal or new trial on the sufficiency of the Contract. Respondant asks for affirmance of the verdict and judgment.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

The first 140 pages of the transcribed report deals with the selection of the jury, statements to the Court out of the presence of the jury in determining as a matter of law the legal sufficiency and effect of the written instrument and effect of the document "proposal and contract" (ex. 1) prepared by defendant Hall and signed by the parties August 15, 1977.

The authorship or execution of the agreement was never questioned or denied. Counsel for defendant in his statement to the court (tr. page 42 line 16) said, "I'm only saying that the agreement between the parties was an employer/employee or a master/servant agreement, just an employment agreement."

Plaintiff testified that he and his wife had three meetings or conferences with the defendant Hall relative to the repair and remodeling of their home prior to the execution of the "proposal and agreement" of August 15, 1977. (tr. Page 50 line 11) which discussion covered inspections and examination of every room described in the agreement; with Mr. Hall taking measurements and making computation as regard each room to be remodeled or repaired said conferences covered a period of two weeks. (tr. Page 50 line 12) For testimony on details of remodeling, all of which was given outside the presence of the

The document "Proposal and Agreement" (ex 1) described the materials to be furnished and the labor necessary to complete the following:

"An addition to the old house (30' x 12') comprising the family room, Kitchen and front room. Re-shingle old roof. Install thermal pane windows in old house. Lower ceiling in living room and install several doors in old house. (not including siding and cabinets)

All of the above work to be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner according to the standard and practice for the sum of twenty four thousand two hundred dollars. (\$24,200.00) Payments to be made as needed for material and labor. The entire amount of the contract to be paid within five days after completion."

Plaintiff testified the work continued from about August 15, 1977 for about six months. (tr. 69 line 23) and that defendant was paid as the work went along for materials and labor.

That defendant Hall had men working for him and that plaintiff had nothing to do with these employees of Hall (tr. 69 page 13)

The workmen, Duane Rowley and Richard Darnell were both called by the defendant and both testified that while working on the O'Hara house they were working for Jay Hall and paid by him (tr. 430-436.

The court found no involvement or supervision of workmen by O'Hara

(tr. 436 line 20). This further supported the construction contract.

The defendant Hall performed the remodeling, and the new construction, the electrical, the plumbing, the carpentering, and everything except cabinets, siding and painting which were specifically excluded.

But he had neither the expertise, the know how or the license to do plumbing, or electrical general contracting. The State Plumbing Inspector, Robert Compton testified as to defects in the plumbing and failure of Hall to comply with the standards of the Plumbing code. The defects in plumbing are described in detail by him. (tr. pages 156 to 178), where he testifies that to replace, repair and re do the defective plumbing would cost \$6000.00 (tr. page 178 line 16)

Ross Glass, the State Building Inspector testified, (tr. pg 217) that the carpentry was defective including porch columns, the installation of the shakes and shingles none of which would pass building inspection. Neither would the plumbing, and that it would need to be re done, certain walls removed and the plumbing replaced ( tr. page 228, lines 10 to 25)

After a correction notice had been delivered to Mr. Hall by the State Plumbing inspector, Hall engaged a Plumber, Duane Eyre, of Richfield to make the correction, but which corrections were never made. Mr. Eyre testified the plumbing was installed improperly. (tr. pages 209 to 211) The corrections

A licensed electrical contractor Wes Barton testified that the electrical installation and repair made by Hall were defective and would not pass code. (tr. page 299)

Marlow Mace, a general contractor testified that on July of 1977 the plaintiff had invited him to submit a contract offer for the repair and remodeling of the O'Hara home. That he inspected the home then, and since the work has been done by the defendant Hall. He detailed the defects in the construction on pages 322 to 345 of the Transcript, estimating a cost of \$19,547.00 to make the Hall job comply with the building code. (Tr. page 344 line 7)

Thus it is evident that the damages resulting from the defective work which would not pass the standards as it was required to do under defendant's written document was the main issue; and for which the jury found damages of \$11,448, and plaintiff is entitled to compensation for such defective performance by reason of the fact that the defendant guaranteed his work to the plaintiff as a condition to performing the work.

## ARGUMENT

POINT 1. There was a binding contract.

The parties dealt with each other at arms length. There was a meeting of the minds; an offer and an acceptance.

There was a consideration of \$24,200.00. Had the negotiation called for an estimate only, the figure would be in round numbers... \$24,000.00 or \$25,000.00. The document prepared and furnished by Hall is construed in favor of the plaintiff.

Hall wrote into the contract:

"All of the above work to be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner according to standards and practices for the sum of Twenty four thousand two hundred (\$24,200.00)

Payments to be made as needed for material and labor. The entire amount of the contract to be paid within five days after completion.

Any alteration or deviation from the above specifications involving extra cost of material or labor will only be extended upon written orders for same and will become an extra charge over the sum mentioned in the contract. All agreements must be made in writing. Signed... Jay A. Hall

## ACCEPTANCE

You are hereby authorized to furnish all materials and labor required to complete the work mentioned in the above proposal, for which \_\_\_\_\_ agree to pay the amount

mentioned to said proposal, and according to the terms thereof.

Accepted.... signed.... Edward J. O'Hara... August 16, 1977 "

According to the Law of Contracts. 17 AM JUR 2D Sec.1

"A contract is a transaction in which each party comes under an obligation to the other and each reciprocally acquires a right to what is promised by the other.

The primary test as to the actual character of a contract is the intention of the parties, to be gathered from the whole scope and effect of the language used, and mere verbal formulas, if inconsistent with the real intention, are to be disregarded. It does not matter by what name the parties chose to designate it. But the existence of a contract, the meeting of the minds, the intention to assume an obligation, and the understanding are to be determined in case of doubt not alone from the words used, but also the situation, acts, and conduct of the parties, and the attendant circumstances.

Sec. 3. Contracts are said to be either express, implied, or constructive. Contracts are express when their terms are stated by the parties, and they are often said to be implied when their terms are not so stated. Thus, an implied contract is one inferred from the conduct of the parties, though not expressed in words.

Contracts may be implied either in law or in fact. Contracts implied in fact are inferred from the facts and circumstances of the case, and are not formally or explicitly stated in words.

It is often said that the only difference between an express contract and a contract implied in fact is that in the former the parties arrive at their agreement by words, whether oral or written, while in the latter their agreement is arrived at by a consideration of their acts and conduct, and that in both of these cases there is, in fact, a contract existing between the parties, the only difference being in the character of evidence necessary to establish it. In other words, in an express contract all the terms and conditions are expressed between the parties, while in an implied contract some one or more of the terms and conditions are implied from the conduct of the parties.

POINT 2. The findings and the judgment of the District Court are entitled to the traditional rule of the Appellate Court viewing the evidence, and all inferences that can reasonably be drawn therefrom in the light most favorable to the findings made and judgment given by the trial court. Cutler vs. Bowen, Utah 1975, 543, P2 1349; and Hardy vs. Hendrickson, 27 Utah 251, 495 P2 28, and Oberhansley vs. Don B. Earl, et al, 1977, Utah 572 P2 1384.

In the above cases the Court found on appeal the decision of the trial court is entitled to a presumption of validity, and all

evidence and inferences drawn therefrom in the light most favorable to sustaining the Court.

The Court painstakingly considered all the testimony of fourteen witnesses, some who testified out of the hearing of the Jury. He examined hundreds of pieces of evidence, bills, receipts, cancelled checks, vouchers. He, better than anyone else knew whether the parties came to a meeting of the minds; whether there was an offer and acceptance; whether the parties relied upon the promise of the others. The Court was also careful in the submitting of special verdicts to have the jury determine the damage caused by the lack of workmanlike construction requiring re-doing; The overpayment made to the defendant. And the Court even had a special "verdict B" allowing for labor or materials furnished by defendant Hall over and above the contract.

#### CONCLUSION

The verdict of the jury and the judgment of the District Court is supported by all the evidence both as to the agreement between the parties and especially as to the amount and nature of damages occasioned when defendant failed to complete all of the work in a substantial and workmanlike manner according to standard and practices and for the work he never completed as agreed for which he was paid.